
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO:       Somerville Retirement Board 
 
FROM:   Joseph E. Connarton, Executive Director 
 
RE:         Approval of Funding Schedule 
 
DATE:    December 14, 2015 
 
 
This Commission is hereby furnishing you with approval of the revised funding schedule you 
recently adopted (copy enclosed).  This schedule is based on the results of your January 1, 2015 
actuarial valuation.  The schedule is effective in FY16 (since the FY16 amount under the prior 
schedule was maintained). 
 
Although we are approving this schedule, note that in each our last three funding schedule 
approval memorandums (February 18, 2014, September 19, 2011 and August 12, 2009), we 
outlined a number of concerns regarding funding levels and the actuarial assumptions.  The most 
recent valuation uses the same principal assumptions as the prior valuation.  Consequently, we 
will reiterate our concerns. 
 
Our goal in designing funding schedules is to maintain, as much as possible, budgeted 
appropriation amounts in both good times and bad.  The System can much easier “weather the 
storm” by maintaining the level of its budgeted appropriation.  The significant reduction to the 
FY10 and each subsequent year’s appropriation has reduced the System’s flexibility in the event 
of a market downturn.  The FY17 appropriation in this updated schedule remains $1.5 million 
less than that outlined in the 2007 schedule despite 8.0% appropriation increases in FY15 and 
FY16.  The 2007 schedule was in place prior to the FY10 reduction of approximately $1.85 
million. 
 
In addition, the actuarial assumptions are the least conservative of any system subject to Chapter 
32.  The Board maintained an investment return assumption of 8.25% in this valuation.  We 
recommended in our prior memorandums that this assumption be reduced.  The 8.25% 
assumption is the highest of any Chapter 32 plan and only 6 systems are using this assumption.  
As of January 1, 2013, PERAC reduced its “standard” investment return assumption for local 
system valuations to 7.75%.  In our January 1, 2015 valuations, we generally recommended a 
further reduction.  There are now 78 systems currently using an assumption less than 8.0%.  Of 
these, 25 are using an assumption less than 7.75%. 
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The 3.0% salary increase assumption is also among the lowest of any Chapter 32 system.  
PERAC’s current standard assumption (ultimate rate after 10 years of service) ranges from 
4.25% for Group 1 members to 4.75% for Group 4 members.  We note the valuation report 
shows a loss on salary (salary was greater than expected) of $1.1 million.  We expect that over 
the long term this assumption will need to be increased (and/or the investment return assumption 
decreased) which will increase plan liabilities. 
 
We also recommend boards adopt a fully generational mortality assumption.  A fully 
generational assumption includes future mortality improvement (longer life expectancy).  
Currently 51 systems have adopted such an assumption. 
 
The combination of the high investment return assumption, low salary increase assumption, and 
the static mortality assumption provides no conservatism for the System.  Our preferred approach 
would have been to use a more conservative assumption set, increase the FY17 and FY18 
appropriations to at least the level of the 2013 schedule, and extend the schedule a few years if 
necessary. Note that the revised schedule has the unfunded actuarial liability fully amortized by 
FY34.  However, adopting a more conservative assumption set would likely extend the schedule 
beyond FY35.  We believe a funding date of FY35 should be a top priority.  
 
Our understanding is the City generally makes appropriation payments in two equal installments 
in July and November/December while the Housing Authority makes its appropriation payments 
monthly from July through December.  The revised schedule adopted by the Board assumes a 
payment date of July 1. If the schedule were to properly reflect the actual timing of the 
payments, the schedule would need to be extended slightly if the payments in the schedule 
already adopted were not adjusted.  We discussed this same issue in the 2013 approval. Please 
discuss this issue with your actuary before the next actuarial valuation so that the next schedule 
reflects the assumed payment dates. 
 
We understand you will be performing an experience study in the next year.  However, we do 
not expect that study will change our recommendations outlined in this memorandum.  We are 
available to meet to discuss these issues further.  If you have any questions, please contact 
PERAC's Actuary, Jim Lamenzo, at (617) 666-4446, extension 921. 
 
 
 






